SOUTH OF MARKET PROJECT AREA COMMITTEE
1035 FOLSOM STREET ® SAN FRANCISCO, CA e 94103

415.487.2166 Fax 415. 487.2169 e website: http://www.sompac.com
Advisory body to the San Francisco Redevelopment Agency

Chris Durazo

#" $ " h & $

Present: Ingrid Aquino, Angelica Cabande/Bindlestiff Studio (\7:22 PM), Rudy Corpuz,
Jr./United Playaz (/6:16 PM), William Curry Ill, Chris Durazo/SOMCAN, Sharon Grace,
David Hammon, Don Marcos/SOM Employment Center, John Markham, John
Melone/SAN, Jason Ortega, Dipak Patel, Sam Patel, Raymon Smith and Mark Swenson

Absent: Andrew Hart, Jerry Longoria and Charles Range/SOM Health Center
Staff: Marcia Ban and Karen Nolan

Agency: Mike Grisso
Guests: Marie Romero/Arkipelago Books, Meital Amitai/Safety Network, Angel

Cruz/Club Six, Captain O’Leary/SFPD Southern Station, Jim Garrison and Colleen
Flynn/Neighborhood Parks Council

L I )
" “To approve the minutes of the December 2006 General PAC meeting with
revisions.”
x " + .- . n "
/

1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12
" “To approve the agenda order as is.”

S n + n n

os$s " 1" ( $ "
2# 3 announced that the next General PAC meeting would be delayed one week
on Monday February 26, 2007 at 6:00 PM.

General PAC minutes (24 January 07) -1-



P 2 (s 0 ot 5 ,

2 provided copies of a draft budget for the South of Market Project Area. He
explained that he did not expect to have a draft budget this early in the process and
reminded members that we would be reviewing this budget over the next few months.

2 pointed out that the Plan Amendment and the 5-year Implementation Plan
are what guides the budget for the Project Area. Everyone should look at developing
proposals of what we would like to do in the area.

2 stated that some people think that the Agency receives all of the tax
increment from this area and this is not true. The Project Area is funded by the tax
increment dollars but the Board of Supervisors must approve the budget. 2
reminded members that some of the tax increment must go towards paying off debt from
prior years. They are expecting a debt service this year of $594,000 and the rest of the
funds would be for new requests. 2 stated that this budget does not include
affordable housing funds.

The first item of the budget is the marketing funds for Urban Solutions to attract business
to 6™ Street. The public improvements pertain to the alley streetscapes for Minna, Russ
and Natoma. The Agency would begin with the alleys west of 6™ Street during the next
year or two with matching funds from DPW. Mr. Grisso referred to Waverly Street in
Chinatown and stated that he brought photos for members to review as a sample of
what could be done in the alleys. He stated that he would meet with DPW once the
funds are approved to review and discuss designs.

Other funding includes the South of Market Health Center and the SOMPAC office. With
regard to the health center, the Agency will be paying for the shell and the health center
would pay for the tenant improvements just as other projects do.

2 referred to the alley streetscape project and wanted to know if the alleys
would be ADA accessible for wheelchairs and pedestrians. 2 stated that they
would and explained with the raised crosswalks the street would be level with the curb at
intersections making it easier for those with disabilities and creating speed bumps to
slow the automobile traffic.

26% " referred to the intersection at 6™ and Howard and stated that while crossing
the street a woman was hit by a car the other morning. He mentions this because there
has been ongoing concern at this intersection. 2 stated that this is a concern at
intersections throughout the city. He explained that this is one of the reasons for the bulb
outs that were put in at the curbs to shorten the length of space between curbs. 2
6% " stated that the lights were changed at 4™ and Howard Streets to make all traffic
stop while pedestrians cross the street. 2 suggested we invite a representative
to a meeting to discuss this further. 2# 3 suggested the HSHS Committee as the
place to invite DPT personnel for a detailed discussion. 26$ " stated that he is
mentioning this now because 6™ and Howard is an extremely dangerous intersection
and to bring it to the committee creates a lengthy process before being able to bring it to
the PAC. He stated that this is an urgent issue.

2 I 3referred to the alley streetscape project and wanted to know if they have
begun work yet. 2 stated that the project has not been funded yet and they
could not begin work until itis. 2 I 3 wanted to know if it were possible for people
in the community to get jobs on this project and reminded everyone that when you hire

General PAC minutes (24 January 07) -2-



from the community, people tend to take more pride in the job because they live here.

2 suggested that 2 I 3work with 2 0 asthe SOM Employment
Center does the training for construction jobs. 2 0 stated that the employment
center is recruiting now for City Build to train people for construction jobs. If anyone is
interested they should contact him so they will be trained and ready for work when the
project is ready to go.

2 " (referred to the alley streetscape and wanted to know how much of the alley
they would improve. 2 stated that they would do the entire alley from 6" to 7™
Streets. 2 " (wanted to know how they chose Minna, Russ and Natoma as the first

alleys and when would they complete the other alleys in the Project Area. 2

stated that the three alleys chosen are in the worst shape. He did a walk through and
determined that these alleys were the worst. There is a mini park on Minna next to a
residential building and Russ Street leads to the new park on Folsom. He stated that
they are certainly planning to do the other alleys once they complete the first three,
which should take 3-4 years.

P 2 /(" b 0 . # 3 7

2# 3 announcedthat 2/(" gave birth to her daughter at the end of
November and sent a letter requesting a leave of absence until May. Everyone received
a copy of her letter in their packets where she explains that she is still interested in
representing her community and would like to receive packets to stay in touch with PAC
business. 26$ " made a motionand 2 5 9 seconded the motion.

" “The PAC accepts Ms. Olivas request for a leave of absence due to the birth of
her daughter until May 2007.

* n + ,8 oo "

" $N6/ s " ( 9 ( " # 3

L# 3 referred to the agenda for the SOMA Community Planning Round Table
that everyone received in packets. She would like input from members on items that they
would like her to discuss as chair of the SOMPAC.

2 stated that he would like to see traffic congestion discussed. He stated that
they are putting too much parking in this area causing problems of congestion and
pedestrian safety. 26$ " stated that he would like to see congestion on the
sidewalks of 6™ Street discussed as well as signage about littering and bicycles on the
sidewalk. He stated that having bicycles on the sidewalk along with wheelchairs and
pedestrians is dangerous. 2 1 3 stated that he would like to see harassment of the
youth by the police discussed. 2# 3 reminded everyone that this meeting would
be looking at issues from a planning perspective.

26%5 " stated that some of these items could be discussed under agenda item 4 for
“complete neighborhoods”. 2 0 stated that there are many members within each
of the three groups attending and he would like to see a list of members from each
group. 2# 3 stated that she would provide this information to staff and staff would
forward this to all members. 2 " (referred to density levels with regard to
affordability and stated that the previous PAC had discussed the possibility of allowing
higher density for higher affordability levels. 2# 3 requested that all those

General PAC minutes (24 January 07) -3-



available should attend Wednesday January 31, 2007 at 6:00 PM at the ARC located at
1500 Howard Street at 11".

" $H:2 (0" b $. 0 0 . # 3 -)

2# 3 announcedthat 2 $  was here tonight with regard to the vacant
seat for a 6" Street retail/commercial merchant. 2 $ introduced herself as the
owner of Arkipelago Books on 6™ Street located in the retail space at the Bayanihan
House. She stated that she previously held this seat but due to surgery in October she
could not attend meetings and lost her seat. 2 $ stated that she is now ready to
participate on a regular basis and is interested in regaining her seat on the PAC. 2
6% " made amotionand ? I 3 seconded the motion.

" “To elect Ms. Romero to fill the vacant seat of 6™ Street Retail/Commercial

Merchant
(o " s "5 2
9 R # 3 <6/ ( <6 4 =
(0 . < ( "Hhe" P 3x? " ( 3@( $
W 6 0 #° ASS # 0 6/ S $ " !
5 $ /" #15 "(6 35 " ( $ 6% 5
6:
9 - n
9 n
* + ,8 " "
r$H,2 " *0 (# " 5. (( B(
8
2 B( introduced herself as a representative of the Neighborhood Parks Council

and stated that a Friends of the Park group was started last year for the new Victoria
Manalo Draves Park. She stated that they would now like to set up either monthly or
guarterly park workdays, but this would be up to the group to decide. 2 B(
explained that new park policies require that all parks have a work plan and 2

$ ; 5, the supervisor for this site would be working on a plan. They would like a
core group of people from the Friends of the Park group towork with 2 $ ; 5 on
this plan.

2 B( referred to Park Scan and stated that this is a way for people to report
problems and issues pertaining to their neighborhood parks. Park Scan could also help
in requests for funding by highlighting issues at particular parks. She gave everyone a
handout explaining how Park Scan works.

2 B( announced that the signage and the restrooms for the park would be
completed in the spring. 26%" mentioned the skateboarders and stated that they
are using the basketball court to skate as well as the cement walls that will eventually be
worn away by the skateboards. He expressed concern because he could never locate
staff at the new park and wanted to know if there would be any staff for the park. 2
6% " stated that previously it was stated that Sherman Street would be closed off to
allow for the safety of the children crossing from Bessie Carmichael School but this has

General PAC minutes (24 January 07) -4 -



not beendone. 2/ " stated that a request was put in for a crosswalk with blinking
lights on Folsom at Russ Street leading to the park but this also has not been done. He
wanted to know if signs would be posted stating the hours the park is open.

2 B( stated that as the facilitator of the park group she could look into these
concerns and report to the park group. She stated that temporary signs were supposed
to be posted but they are not yetup. 2/ " wanted to know if they could install a
generator to allow for lights at night. He stated that when the kids want to play at the
park at night they could turn the generator on with a timer and this way it would be lit up
and safe for the kids. 2 I 3agreedwith 2/" and stated that he takes
groups of youth to the park but it is dark and they could not see to play safely.

2 0 wanted to know if neighbors must take concerns to NPC or if they could go
directly to the Recreation and Parks Department. 2 B( stated that anyone could
contact Recreation and Parks directly. The NPC organizes and facilitates the park
groups coming together because there is more power in numbers when it comes to
accomplishing things for the park. 2 0 wanted to know what area the NPC
serves. 2B( stated that they serve parks citywide.

26%5 " referred to the community garden at the new park and wanted to know when
the next meeting would be held. 2# 3 stated that the next meeting would be held
at the Gene Friend Recreation Center on Thursday, January 25" at 6:30. She stated that
there would be a yearly fee of $22 for a garden plot and she believes there are still
garden plots available for those interested. 2 B( passed around a sign up sheet for
the Friends of Victoria Manalo Draves Park and suggested anyone interested should
sign up and they would receive notification of the next meeting.

1 $,.2 (-61# "o $ 6% s
2635 " referred to the demand letter for Club Six that everyone received in packets.
He stated that in February 2004 Club Six came before the PAC for an endorsement of
their expansion. At that time, it was common knowledge that there were noise
abatement issues. A promise was made to address this and it has not happened.

2 3 stated that Club Six is the biggest business and the biggest employer of people
from this area, in the neighborhood. He stated that he has invested everything he has
made at the club back into the club. They have a world-renowned art gallery at the club.

2 3 stated that when he bought the club it was run down and there were no other
businesses around this area of 6" Street. The club has made the street safer at night
and brought other businesses to the area. 2 3 stated that he is a board member of
Urban Solutions and reminded everyone that you must have tax dollars to run a city. 2
# 3 reminded 2 3 that we are here to discuss the noise problems emanating
from the club.

2 3 stated that Club Six had a meeting with the neighbors and they are having
another one next week. He stated that the club follows the requirements of the Good
Neighbor Policy and they continue to upgrade. 26%$ " stated that he would like to
acknowledge Captain O’Leary and request his comments.

"/ announced that Southern District performed an unannounced sound

check at Club Six and they were in compliance with the sound permits. He referred to
other noise complaints and stated that this is an issue for the Entertainment

General PAC minutes (24 January 07) -5-



Commission. A technician from the Entertainment Commission paid a visit to the club
and measured the sound decibels. There have been no requests since the last meeting.

26%5 " referred to the issues brought up by residents pertaining to crowded
sidewalks, the noise in the alleys and the secondhand smoke from people smoking in
the alley outside of the club. 1"/ stated that the permits were issued by the
Entertainment Commission and the club must follow the Good neighbor Policy that
includes crowd control. He referred to the secondhand smoke and stated that he has no
answer for this, as there are no laws to address this issue. When the Southern District
receives a call regarding the noise, they do handle this or make arrests when necessary.
He keeps records of all calls for service and police reports but does not know of any filed
in the past 60 days. 1" / reminded everyone that he was not invited to
attend tonight's meeting for this discussion and would have researched this if he knew
he was going to be questioned on this issue.

?# 3 stated that we should have the Entertainment Commission in attendance
and that this item should be referred back to the HSHS Committee for more detailed

discussion. 26; stated that this sounds like a personal complaint by a
particular member. 26% " stated that the SRO Collaborative has taken up this issue.
2 = stated that she attended the meeting regarding noise at Club Six and there

were many neighborhood groups in attendance that stated they had complained to the
police about the noise.

2 5 & stated that he personally called the police twice and was told that Club Six
has a permit to operate so there was nothing they could do. He stated that after that, he
stopped calling. 2 ( stated that Club Six should keep the doors closed because
when they are left open it creates too much noise. 2 3 stated that they have 4-5
layers of sound curtains to minimize the noise. The doors are panic doors and due to the
fire codes they could not keep them closed during business hours.

2 " (stated that as a previous PAC member he visited the area when Club Six
requested the endorsement for the expansion. He did not hear any noise from the club a
half block away as some are claiming. He wanted to know how many complaints Club
Six has received from the residents and owner of the Lawrence Hotel. 2 3 stated
that they have received less than 10 complaints. 2 I 3 stated that he has lived in
the neighborhood all of his life and anytime you live near a club there will be some noise.
He stated that he does not hear as much from Club Six as other clubs in the
neighborhood.

/" stated that DJ’s tend to turn the volume up on the sound system when the
crowd becomes excited and he wondered if there was any way to monitor this. 2 3
stated that the sound system has a cap. He explained that you must have a cap on the
sound system or you would be constantly blowing out the speakers. 2 " (wanted to
know if Club Six has sound limiter controls on their sound system. 2 3 stated that
they do not however, it is part of the Good Neighbor Policy and he has no problem with
it. 2# 3 thanked 2 3 for attending our meeting this evening and speaking so
candidly.

General PAC minutes (24 January 07) -6-



e, ™ -
26%5 " announced that he has considered resigning as chair of the Housing
Committee. He attended the pedestrian safety meeting at SAN as well as several other
meetings including Hospitality House and Street Beautification.

26% " stated that the Housing Committee would be looking at the Housing Policy
passed by the previous PAC. He referred to his request to ban smoking in housing and
stated that the housing policy refers to a safe, healthy environment, and he believes this
should include not allowing smoking.

2 = stated that the HSHS Committee had two representatives from the District
Attorney’s office in attendance this month to discuss drug sales in the SRO hotels. We
had two undercover narcotics officers in attendance as well.

Pedestrian safety and ADA compliance were also discussed where we learned of the
CHIPPS program to install safety rails in showers for seniors. A discussion was had with
regard to litter in the area and the point was made that many times it is the garbage
collection companies that are leaving garbage behind after they do the trash collection.

$$5 " " $ 8)
2 announced that the California Alliance for Retired Americans would be
conducting a Captains training on January 30" from 10:00 AM to 2:00 PM. This training
is in Fairfield and lunch will be served.

2 5 $ announced that the next meeting regarding problems at Club Six would
be held on Tuesday, January 30™ at 7:00 PM. The meeting will be held at Club Six
located at 60 6" Street.

2 " (requested that we have an update on the SRO hotel loan program at the next
Housing Committee.

(0 B ")
; : )

General PAC minutes (24 January 07) -7-



